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August 27, 2021

Yvette Bordeax Williams, Chair
Spring Valley Town Advisory Board

Dear Ms. Williams,

We ask the Spring Valley Town Advisory Board to reject the revised “Durango Station” project
(APN: 176-05-601-028), which is scheduled to come before you on August 31.! The applicant is
requesting an extension of time for a 13-year-old project and approvals for revised plans that still
call for a Strip-sized 94,511 square-foot casino and two 216-foot hotel towers with 452 total
rooms.>

Because there are approximately 200 Culinary Union members who reside within a mile of the
project site, we wish to raise questions about potential life-of-quality issues involving traffic,
pedestrian safety, and neighborhood compatibility with this new “Durango Station” project. We
believe the applicant’s extension of time request should be denied because circumstances have
substantially changed since the project’s last extension of time in 2018, specifically with the
approval and on-going construction of the large UnCommons development to the east. We also
ask you to deny the applicant’s request for a revised conditional use permit and design review
because the new proposal, in spite of its reduced intensity, does not in our view meet the
standards of Title 29 nor does it confirm with multiple policies of the Clark County Master Plan.

How much more traffic will “Durango Station” generate on fop of new traffic from the
UnCommons development across the street?

The applicant argues in its extension of time justification letter that “[s]ince the extension of time
in October 2018, circumstances have not substantially changed to the subject property, area
surrounding the subject property, or any change in laws or policies affecting the subject
property.” The approval and construction of a “high impact project” to the site’s east across
Durango would seem to contradict this statement.>

According to the Traffic Impact Study approved for the UnCommons project, the average daily
traffic (ADT) on Durango between [-215 and W. Warm Springs Rd. is anticipated to increase
18,533 to reach 78,558 vehicle trips per day upon that project’s completion.* This projected ADT
will make this stretch of Durango busier than the Strip between Flamingo and Desert Inn, which
saw an estimated 63,000 vehicle trips per day in 2019, according to NDOT data.> How much
additional traffic — on top of new traffic due to UnCommons — will be generated by “Durango
Station”? Were the roads in the immediate area designed to handle this much traffic?
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UnCommons (Approved) Durango Station (Proposed)®
Total Area 564,900 sf Total Area 569,415 sf
Apartments 838 units Hotel rooms 452 keys
Additional ADT 18,533 Additional ADT ?

Given the presence of UnCommons now, this application for a fif¢h extension of time for a
conditional use permit approved 13 years ago (UC-08-0726) should be denied.

Why is the hotel driveway on Maule Avenue?

Some of the additional traffic the “Durango Station” project will generate will be on Maule
Avenue, with the driveway to the hotel’s porte-cochere situated on that street. This layout
appears to go directly against the spirit of Policy No. 88 of the Clark County Master Plan, which
states: “Encourage resort hotels to provide primary access from existing/planned arterial
streets.”” Maule Avenue is not an arterial road.® Moreover, the plans show the hotel driveway to
be directly opposite the primary entrance/exit of the condo-apartment complex across Maule
Avenue. What kind of traffic and safety issues might arise with this choice to locate a major
driveway on a non-arterial road? Can the applicant move the project’s hotel driveway from
Maule to Durango?

Traffic on Maule was increasing significantly before the pandemic hit in 2020. From 2016 to
2019, annual average daily traffic (AADT) on Maule grew by 56%, from 2400 to 3750,
according to NDOT data.’ Driver and vehicle incidents on Maule were also on an upward trend,
and 2021 is on track to surpass pre-pandemic levels, according to data from Metro.'® How much
more traffic and traffic accidents can be expected if there is a hotel driveway to a Strip-sized
resort hotel on Maule?

Until the applicant has either provided a justification for situating its hotel driveway on Maule, or
alternatively, redesigned the project to move the hotel driveway, its application for a new
conditional use permit and design review should be denied.

What safety measures will be implemented to ensure pedestrian student safety on Maule?
Wayne N. Tanaka Elementary School is located within “walking distance” of the “Durango
Station” site, according to CCSD guidelines.!'. Given the project’s proximity to Tanaka
Elementary, has the applicant has reached out to the CCSD to discuss mitigation and safety
measures for student transportation?

Furthermore, Clark County is currently updating its master plan and development through the
“Transform Clark County” process. The draft master plan was released last month.!? One of the
new policies is Policy 4.1.7 SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL, which states: “In coordination with
Clark County School District (CCSD), support Safe Routes to Schools programs as a way to
reduce vehicular congestion in school zones and create safe and inviting environments for
students, families, and staff to walk, bicycle, and use public transportation to travel to and from
school.”



Due to the potential traffic impact of the proposed project, until the applicant has engaged CCSD
to discuss and jointly formulate a plan to provide for safe student routes on Maule and adjacent
streets, its application for a new conditional use permit and design review should be denied.

Is a 216-foot hotel tower compatible with the area surrounding the project site?

As proposed, the “Durango Station” hotel tower will be the tallest building in the area and almost
three times taller than the tallest planned building at UnCommons (an office building at 75 feet).
The hotel tower will be much taller than the residential developments west and south of the site —
single-family units or condo-apartments which are at most two stories tall. It seems clear then
that the “Durango Station” project would be visually incompatible with its surroundings and in
violation of another set of policies set out in the Clark County Master Plan. Policy No. 4 states:
“Development approval should be conditioned upon screening between visual incompatibilities;”
and Policy No. 9 states: “Encourage requests for permit modifications or extensions of time on
existing uses to include a plan to reduce their visual impacts and a phasing plan for completion.”
Did the applicant consider lower height for the hotel component when it formulated its new
proposal?

Thought should be given to the possibility that hotel guests in the 216-foot tower might be able
to see into nearby residences or their backyards. Is that something the applicant has considered?

Again, we believe the applicant request for approval of a revised conditional use permit and
design review should be denied because the proposed height is incompatible with its surrounding
area.

In closing, given how much the project site’s surrounding area has changed, we believe a denial
for a fifth further extension of time is warranted. As for the applicant’s request for a revised
conditional use permit and design review, we believe it should be denied as well. This holdover
resort hotel project has been around for so long that it is still subject to Title 29, which was
replaced by the new development code Title 30 more than 20 years ago.'* But even Title 29
requires a high standard from the applicant when it comes to design review.

The purpose of this part, Design Review (previously referred to as architectural
supervision), is to provide a mechanism to ensure that the design and layout of buildings,
structures and other improvements shall be adequate to prevent them, or the uses for
which they are to be intended, from being unsightly, undesirable, or obnoxious, hindering
the orderly and harmonious development of the county, limiting the opportunity to attain
the optimum use and value of land and improvements, impairing the desirability of living
conditions in the same area or adjacent areas, or otherwise adversely affecting the general
prosperity and welfare and to further the purposes of the master plan. (Title 29, Section
05.510)

As for standards for conditional use permits, Title 29 states:

No conditional use permit shall be approved unless the applicant establishes that the
proposed conditional use is appropriate for its proposed location by a showing that:



1. The proposed use shall be in harmony with the general purpose, goals,
objectives and standards of the comprehensive plan and of this title;

2. The proposed use at the proposed location shall not result in a substantial or
undue adverse effect on: adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood,
traffic conditions, parking, public improvements, public sites or rights-of-way, or
other matters affecting the public health, safety and general welfare; and

3. The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
not impose an undue burden on any public improvements, facilities or services.
(Title 29, Section 29.05.050)

We believe that the proposal in front of you does not meet these standards. Furthermore, we
believe it also does not comply with policies of the county master plan, as discussed above.

The applicant had ample opportunity in the past to commence its previously approved project,
especially before the UnCommons development, but it did not. Instead, the company bought the
Palms casino for $316.4 million in 2016'* and spent $690 million through the fall of 2019 to
renovate the property.!> Now it is running up against the deadline to commence on September 3,
2021 and is seeking approval for a revised project that still raises significant traffic, safety, and
compatibility issues. The applicant can do better. The area and its residents deserve better.

Sincerely,
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4 A —

Ken Liu
Research Director
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